
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 

FOR 
 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    

6:15 pm City Council Executive Session 
(Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(i), Performance Evaluation) 

 
7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 

 
URA Board of Directors Meeting 

(following the regular City Council meeting) 
 

City Council Executive Session 
(Following URA Board Mtg.) 

(Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(i), Performance Evaluation) 



  

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
January 7, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

  
 
6:15 PM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
1. ORS 192.660(2)(i), Performance Evaluation 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  
3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. CONSENT 

 

A. Approval of December 17, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Resolution 2014-001 Appointing Shelly Lamb to the Cultural Arts Commission 

C. Resolution 2014-002 Appointing Vicki Poppen to the Cultural Arts Commission 

D. Resolution 2014-003 Removing James Copfer from the Planning Commission 

 
5. PRESENTATIONS 

 

A. Proclamation, National School Board Month 

 

6. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Council President Selection 

B. City Recorder Performance Evaluation 

 
7. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

8. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

9. CITY MANAGER AND DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

10. ADJOURN TO URA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 

11. RECONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday prior to a Council meeting. Council agendas 
are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior Center, and the City's bulletin board at Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available 
to the public at the Library.   
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 
If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to appear to the City 
Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov 

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
January 7, 2014 

 
6:15 pm Executive Session 

(ORS 192.660(2)(i), Performance Evaluation) 

 
7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 

 
URA Board of Directors Meeting 

(Following the City Council meeting) 

 
City Council Executive Session 
(ORS 192.660(2)(i), Performance Evaluation) 

(Following the URA board Meeting) 

 
Sherwood City Hall 

22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

1

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2013 
Page 1 of 10 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

December 17, 2013 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Middleton called the meeting to order at 6:33 pm. 
 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Mayor Bill Middleton, Councilors Dave Grant, Robyn Folsom, Matt Langer and 
Krisanna Clark. Councilor Bill Butterfield arrived at 6:38 pm and Council President Linda Henderson 
arrived at 6:40 pm. 

 
3. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Joseph Gall, Assistant City Manager Tom 

Pessemier, Finance Director Julie Blums,  City Recorder Sylvia Murphy and City Attorney Chris Crean. 
 
4. TOPICS: 

 
A. Exempt Public Records pursuant 192.660 (2)(f). 
 

5. ADJOURN: 

 

 Mayor Middleton adjourned the executive session at 6:56 pm and convened to the regular Council 
meeting. 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Middleton called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
3. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Mayor Bill Middleton, Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Bill 

Butterfield, Dave Grant, Krisanna Clark, Robyn Folsom and Matt Langer. 
  
4. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: Joseph Gall City Manager, Tom Pessemier Assistant City 

Manager, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Craig Sheldon Public Works Director, Julie Blums Finance Director, 
Julia Hajduk Community Development Director, Kristen Switzer Community Services Director, City 
Engineer Bob Galati, Police Captain Mark Daniel, and Sylvia Murphy City Recorder. City Attorney Chris 
Crean. 

 

2



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 10 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A. Approval of November 5, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Approval of November 19, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

C. Approval of December 3, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

D. Resolution 2013-063 Canvassing returns of the November 5, 2013 Washington County 
General Election, proclaiming results and directing the City Recorder to enter the election 
results into the record 

E. Resolution 2013-064 Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with AKS 
Engineering and Forestry for the design of the Columbia Street Regional Stormwater Facility 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA, 

SECONDED BY COUNCILOR CLARK, MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS: 

 
A. Eagle Scout Recognition 

 

There were no scouts present. Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 
B. Recognition of TVF&R Captain Dan Atkisson 

 
Mayor Middleton recognized Captain Dan Atkisson who will be retiring. He stated Captain Dan was 
promoted in 1999 and assigned to Sherwood Station 33. During his 13 years in Sherwood he 
demonstrated an outgoing engagement and positive attitude and his leadership is known throughout the 
district. Captain Dan provided leadership for many volunteers who have worked at Station 33 and he 
respected their sacrifice to the community and respected them as community members and treated 
them as his crews. Mayor Middleton provided examples of community events and functions in which 
Captain Dan participated in as well as his efforts in building community partnerships. He stated Captain 
Atkisson has made efforts to know the citizens and everyone refers to him as Captain Dan. He has been 
a humble, thankful, professional, positive servant to the citizens and the crews that have served at the 
station. His legacy will live on for decades and he will not be forgotten. Mayor Middleton stated he has 
worked with Captain Dan for years and it was an honor. Mayor Middleton presented Captain Dan with a 
Certificate of Appreciation and a City jacket. Mayor Middleton spoke of the unbelievable relationship the 
City has with TVFR and thanked them for their service.  
 
Captain Dan stated he has been blessed to serve the City of Sherwood since 1999 as the Captain of the 
fire station. He said it has been an amazing and wonderful experience to serve in the 5th best small City 
in America, a place where you call home. He said he is just one in a long line of men and women who 
have dedicated their lives to keeping Sherwood safe and secure for over 100 years. He said the citizens 
of Sherwood became aware they needed fire protection when in 1898 and in 1911 catastrophic fires 
ravaged the City and they joined together and built a 75 foot water tower, wooden board fire mains and 
purchased fire hoses to protect their homes and businesses. He said the first volunteer fire department 
was organized and the Fire Laddy’s selected W.T. Fisk as their first Fire Chief in 1915. He said this 
legacy of service continues to this day with our volunteer and career firefighters available and ready to 
serve 24 hours a day and 365 days a year. He said when he was first assigned to Sherwood Station 33 

3



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2013 
Page 3 of 10 

it was clear that our fire station was not just a Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue station, the families that 
live here take ownership in their station as do the volunteer and career firefighters. He said he felt cared 
for, valued and loved by the City staff and the citizens that he had been charged to protect and serve, 
and said you have made me a family member of your wonderful town. He said when you call 911 for 
help or come to the fire station for assistance or bring your children to the station for a tour you will 
always receive more than just a quick and efficient trained professional responding to your questions or 
emergency. He said you will also get a caring, compassionate family member who will welcome you in 
and take the time to value you and treat you as a member of the Sherwood family. He stated at the end 
of the day it will not matter how well we perform, if we do not also share our sincere compassion, care 
and respect to the ones we serve, thank you all for allowing me to be a part of the fine community family 
we call Sherwood.  
 
Captain Dan stated they will be having an Open House January 25th, 2-5pm at the Sherwood Fire 
Station and he welcomed the community.   
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 
C. Code of Conduct 

 
City Manager Joe Gall stated this business was originally scheduled to be in a Council work session and 
the Mayor suggested presenting in open session. He said if the Council provides direction to staff to 
draft an ordinance enacting a code of conduct that would affect the public, there would be interest in the 
information. Mr. Gall stated he will introduce the topic and invite Dave Nelson the CIS Public Safety 
Manager to explain. Mr. Gall said he wanted the Council to know what a code of conduct is and where it 
comes from. He said Mr. Nelson will talk more in detail and said staff has been working closely with CIS 
(City County Insurance) to evaluate safety for employees in the building. He said CIS is our insurance 
agent and risk management firm and one of the suggestions that came out of the analysis was adopting 
a code of conduct, similar to what other jurisdictions have. He said the document provided to the Council 
(see record, Exhibit A) is a preliminary draft of an ordinance based on the City of Tigard’s adopted 
ordinance. 
 
Mr. Nelson came forward and provided a brief overview of the services CIS provides to the City. He 
stated they are the insurance company organization that insures the City of Sherwood and they insure 
most of the cities in the state with the exception of Portland, Salem, Eugene and Medford, and insure 28 
of 36 Counties. He said his specific role is the Public Safety Manager which oversees the Risk 
Management Division and provides risk management services to our public safety members. He noted 
he has worked with Police Chief Groth and since he has been with CIS he has had a number of 
interactions with the City. He said dating back to 2010 he did some work with violence training with staff 
and educating them on what work place violence is, ways to see and observe it, and ways to react and 
report. He stated in 2011 he worked with the Police Department reviewing best practices and what that 
meant. He commented in 2013 they started doing security assessments with Chief Groth and looking at 
all the buildings in the City, making determinations on ways to improve risk and security and worked on 
claim review with the Police Department administrative staff and looking at how claims have occurred in 
the police department, looking at risk management techniques to reduce those claims in the future. He 
stated these are the types of services he provides to Sherwood and other cities in the State.  
 

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2013 
Page 4 of 10 

He said he was asked to look at the proposal the Council is discussing this evening as far as from a risk 
management perspective whether this is going to be a fit for the overall security. He noted he looks at 
this as an extension of an exclusion. He said when he worked as the Chief and as the City Administrator 
in the City of Troutdale they had an exclusion ordinance that would address behaviors, if members of 
the public violate park rules for example, they can be excluded from the park or trespass for a period of 
time. He commented when he was presented with this information he looked at it as an extension of 
that. He said this is a policy decision for you, whether this is something you want to have within your City 
and not for CIS to recommend or approve, we think it’s a good idea from a risk management perspective 

and fitting into the overall security. He noted it gives some tools to staff to contain and address 
behavioral issues if citizens are coming in and making threats to staff or making threats to each other. 
He offered to answer Council questions.  
 
Mayor Middleton confirmed that Tigard and Troutdale have this model. Mr. Nelson replied the City of 
Tigard has this model. He said when he was in Troutdale they did not have this exact model, but had an 
exclusion ordinance. He gave the example of an individual coming into a park and violating park rules or 
criminal statutes, they could be excluded for a period of time, 30, 60 or 90 days. He said if they did 
return during this period of time they would be cited for trespassing. He stated a number of cities around 
the State have exclusion ordinances similar to Troutdale. He commented that he wasn’t sure if 

Sherwood has an exclusion policy. City Manager Gall replied no, the only exclusion policy we have is in 
the Library.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked if this would include parks as well. City Manager Gall replied yes, the way it is 
drafted it would be all City property, it’s very broad in terms of the scope.  
 
City Manager Gall noted this is a policy choice and this is why he is bringing it to the Council, it’s a tool 

that we could use to deal with those very rare occasions. He said he doesn’t believe it would be needed 

very often. He said he has had staff consistently ask him what they can do to protect the work 
environment.  
 
Mayor Middleton referenced the City of Portland having something similar and said he thought it was 
overturned, regarding drugs in a certain location. He asked if it was overturned because it wasn’t broad 

enough. Mr. Nelson replied Portland is not a CIS member and he wasn’t sure. Discussion occurred 

regarding the Portland situation. Mr. Nelson stated the park exclusions they had in Troutdale and other 
members of CIS currently have, have been upheld so far.  
 
City Manager Gall asked City Attorney Chris Crean if he had anything to add from a legal standpoint. 
Mr. Crean replied it’s a work in process and referred to the draft ordinance and said it needs some 

editing and there are also issues we want to make sure we address, such as making sure we identify 
what property the person would be excluded from; if they are causing a problem in a park are they just 
excluded from the park property or all City property. He referred to language of “the person in charge” 

and said you have to identify the person in charge and that should be clearly delineated. He stated any 
actual notice should have the correct information, for example, the reason for exclusion, the length of 
time, place they are excluded from, the right to appeal, etc. and making sure any exclusions that end up 
in a citation result in a citation for a violation and not a misdemeanor. He said these are things we want 
to keep in mind as we move through the process, if you think this is a useful tool. He referred to the City 
of Portland and said they have an exclusion ordinance and said as far as the drug free zone, he is not 
sure of the status. 

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2013 
Page 5 of 10 

 
Councilor Henderson asked if we were to pass an ordinance like this and add this to our code and if 
someone is cited it would go through Municipal Court. City Manager Gall replied yes. She asked if 
Judge Jack Morris reviewed this. Mr. Gall replied he did an initial review and made some suggestions 
and minor changes and he is supportive of the overall ordinance. He said Judge Morris lengthened 
some of the time and changed language of “shall” to “may” to give him more discretion if he were to see 
any appeals. 
 
Councilor Butterfield stated his concern is if we had an altercation who is going to take care of escorting 
the individual out of the building, is staff going to call their supervisor or call the police? Mr. Nelson 
responded that he hoped 911 would be called and Sherwood Police Department would do the escorting 
but said it gives the discretion to the City Manager. Mr. Gall added that it would depend on the severity 
of the issue and whether someone was feeling physically threatened they should call 911 with or without 
this ordinance. Councilor Butterfield asked if that would be added to the ordinance if you are going to 
have the code it needs to spell out how the process works. Mr. Crean suggested that the reason for 
designating a person in charge is to authorize that person to order someone to be excluded, he provided 
an example. He stated it may not be necessary in all circumstances for the police to be involved. He 
noted a person should be designated for each facility.  
 
Councilor Folsom asked what that process look likes for the employee. Mr. Gall said without this 
ordinance a supervisor would be contacted right away and people would come up to diffuse the 
situation, but if someone did not calm down or deal with the warning, right now we don’t have any 

authority to exclude someone from the building. He said staff would like this tool. He stated this is an 
attempt to find balance between free speech rights but also protect the work environment. He stated he 
is looking for a tool and this is a tool other cities have utilized. He asked Council for direction for moving 
forward with this issue.  
 
Councilor Folsom stated she is supportive and asked if the process was to ask them to leave and issue 
a citation. Police Chief Groth said this would probably operate much like other exclusion processes and 
gave an example of a typical process and said if it comes to it there will be an exclusion notice that 
discusses what the problem was, the exact place they are excluded from, and the period of time. He 
said it becomes a criminal matter if the person returns to that place before the time period is up and they 
potentially risk being arrested for trespassing. He stated the exclusion notice does carry punitive 
sanctions.  
 
Mr. Crean noted that the process that the Chief described is explained in Section .090.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked what the difference is between this and a trespass letter.  
 
Chief Groth replied that the other terminology often used is “the person has been trespassed from”, and 
any property owner has the ability to exclude or trespass someone from their property. He noted 
typically the difference between trespass and exclusion is exclusion is generally for a period of time. He 
said yes, we do those trespass letter now. 
 
Mr. Nelson commented that an exclusion from City Hall for example, does not preclude them from doing 
business with the City, they just can’t physically enter the premise.  
 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2013 
Page 6 of 10 

Councilor Grant asked about situations with individuals damaging city property and whether this tool 
could be helpful in those circumstances. 
 
Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier replied that this was an issue a few years ago and Council 
directed staff to be proactive and explain the rules to such individuals.  
 
Chief Groth stated that they still have that issue but it has gotten better due to everyone’s efforts. He 

replied that yes, this would be useful in those situations by providing a non-criminal sanction and these 
individuals could be excluded for a period of time.  
 
Councilor Langer referred to the mention of staff difficulties in the past and asked about the City’s 

liability concerning insurance claims with regard to employee safety.  
 
Mr. Nelson responded there are 2 possibilities under that scenario. He stated if the employee is injured 
either physically or emotionally it could have some workers compensation issues to address and he 
stated the City of Sherwood does not have Workers Compensation with CIS. He said the other option, if 
the employee was injured to the point that they felt that the City staff or management did not do enough 
to protect them they could file a tort notice and that would involve CIS and we would end up defending 
the City. He said that would be very unlikely and it would more than likely fall under Workers 
Compensation.  
 
Councilor Langer asked for an example of the problems that have occurred in the past. Chief Groth 
replied there have been two to three times where the Police have gone to Public Works to deal with out 
of control customers.  
 
Mr. Nelson commented that due to certain circumstances in Sherwood in 2010, he was asked to provide 
work place violence training to the staff, but he did not know the specifics of the circumstances.  
 
Councilor Langer referred to Section F which states “including but not limited to, conduct that creates 
unreasonable noise, or conduct that consists of loud or boisterous physical behavior” and said that 
sounds a little vague and asked how that is measured.  
 
Mr. Nelson replied that he would consider vulgar use of language and specific threats to staff enough to 
start the process, situations that rise to a disorderly conduct level. He said this is a tool to be used and 
sets the tone that you are not going to allow your employees to be treated that way.  
 
Councilor Clark commented on dispute resolutions and having this in place in Sherwood would be good 
and referred to experiences she has had with individuals damaging City property and said having a 
culture of respect would be a good idea. 
 
Mayor Middleton asked for a consensus from the Council for staff to continue working on this. Council 
agreed and thanked Mr. Nelson for the information.  
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

 

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2013 
Page 7 of 10 

A. Resolution 2013-065 Extending the Portland General Electric Company Franchise Agreement 

through June 30, 2014 

 
City Manager Gall said staff have asked for extensions previously under the Consent Agenda and 
decided to put this under New Business. He stated we are still in negotiations with PGE and have a 20-
year plus franchise agreement with them. He said we are hoping to be done with negotiations by the 
end of December 2013 and are now asking for another 6 months. He said he needs an extension 
adopted by resolution to extend the current contract. 
  
Councilor Folsom asked what the problems with the negotiations are. 
 
Mr. Crean said they are not sure but sent a draft of a new franchise agreement and PGE returned a 
matrix of issues. He said they sent PGE the draft again and asked them to mark up the draft and that 
will help us narrow the issues. He referred to the two page matrix, but is not sure what are big issues 
and what can be easily resolved.  
 
Mr. Gall referred to other negotiations that drag out with PGE. Mr. Crean stated these tend to drag on 
and commented that they tend to negotiate the same things repeatedly, but there is willingness from 
both parties and said they could reasonably wrap this up by February. 
 
Council President Henderson asked if the intent was to sign a 20 year agreement. Mr. Gall responded it 
would be more like a 15 year agreement. 
 
Councilor Henderson asked what is unique about PGE franchise agreements with Sherwood versus 
other cities. Mr. Crean said he does not know but will get back to her, but it may have to do with 
underground or right of way requirements.  
 
With no other comments or questions, the following motion was received. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2013-065, 

SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BUTTERFIELD, MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN 

FAVOR. 

 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 
8. CITIZEN COMMENT 

 

Susan Claus, 22211 SW Pacific Hwy, approached the Council and said the issue that was just 
discussed was not in the Council packet and asked how the citizens could get the information and asked 
to be on the list. She commented on a document she provided the Council and said there is a City 
interpretation and read the section of the Sherwood Municipal Code that states “no signature sheet may 

be circulated by more than one person. Each signature sheet must contain a statement signed by the 
circulator that each elector who signed the sheet did so in the circulator’s presence, and, to the best of 

the circulator’s knowledge, each such elector is a legal elector of the city and that the information placed 

on the sheet by each such elector is correct”. She stated that the City has made an interpretation that 
elector and circulator are two separate people. She said at the County and State you can sign as an 
elector and a circulator and they are called E-sheets. She said we have an interpretation now at the City 

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2013 
Page 8 of 10 

that it is not City Code and said it is an incorrect interpretation. She referred to an email for the City 
Recorder Sylvia Murphy which stated “the City stands firm on this interpretation and circulation of E-
Sheets is not allowed in the City under the current Code”. She said the remedy is going to court and the 
problem is it is the Council’s responsibility to interpret the Code. She suggested and referred to the 
timeframe and petitions being circulated that have been thwarted and said the E-sheet effort addresses 
a technology for people who want to sign a petition online where they sign as the elector and the 
circulator. She stated the problem is, in Sherwood we have made an inaccurate interpretation and the 
wrong person made it and said the Council has to look into this and correct it and look to the State and 
the County and to our citizens that are homebound and getting citizens every avenue so they can 
participate in the process. She suggested getting an outside set of attorneys to give the Council advice.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked the City Manager to get back to the Council with information about this.  
 
Robert Claus, 22211 SW Pacific Hwy, came forward and commented on the need to carry a tape 
recorder and referred to making the town adversarial. He provided a handout and discussed public 
safety and the conditions of the highway at Chicken Creek and said it has been degraded and the 
wetlands have been degraded according to CWS. He said the highway has moved and settled. He 
referred to previous attempts to handle this. He stated that the water has been misdirected out of Cedar 
Creek and ran back through Chicken Creek which started the degradation. He referred to expansions 
being allowed without storm water facilities and now the highway is deteriorating. He commented on an 
application to expand a parking lot and statements have been accepted as fact and the problem is the 
observation and the physical deterioration. He noted that Mr. Gall has a meeting on the 20th with Diane 
Taniguchi-Dennis who replaced Bob Cruz who tried to resolve the problem earlier and said the problem 
is that if you solve the problem Cedar Brook Way can be built easily. He said he would not discuss 
motives because that will be a matter of deposition and he will not avoid this litigation and said they had 
better look at that highway which is moving now and deterioration is the natural probable consequence. 
He said he is not involved and it is beyond his control. He stated the damage is in the 1.5 million dollar 
range and you have a chance to correct it but since you are the only agency that will not attend the 
meeting to take action you will get the benefit of the credit. 
 
Mara Broadhurst, 28440 SW Ladd Hill Road, came forward and commented regarding Sherwood 
cronyism. She commented that Sherwood will be changed to “Sherwon’t” and the practice of deciding 
which businesses will come, which will be targeting for boycott, how long they can stay open and who 
will shop there. She said the cronies know it all and will determine city policy, recall Councilors that 
disagree, and fill their seats with fellow cronies. She referred to reader board’s subliminal messages and 
Facebook propaganda. She commented on policies such as big money policy and staff to be fired and 
taxes to pay for recall and appeals, no growth, no new roads, etc. She referred to politics and 
controversy and said to not let the unintentional consequences of activism lead to discrimination and 
elitism. She commented on due process being hijacked. She stated in 2006 the Planning Commission 
allowed for parking on both sides of the neighborhood route designated for Cedar Brook Way and this 
had an impact on how the area was developed. She said there are more changes coming to the area 
and the integrity of connector road standards need to be in place to function properly regardless of land 
use changes. She suggested scrutinizing the whole area and protecting the rest of the Cedar Creek 
wetlands from the impact of building and said development needs to be a priority. She asked how much 
more pressure from pressure groups will it take before due process for all suffers. She said the staff is 
experienced and dedicated and a major factor in getting Sherwood to number 5 small town in America 
and they are good at their jobs and we should let them work and maybe we will get to number 1.     

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2013 
Page 9 of 10 

 
Scott Oldham, nonresident but working in Sherwood, said he has been working for Edwards Painting 
and is working on the Cannery Row project. He stated they were hired by KeyWay Corporation and has 
a long relationship with them. He said Edwards Painting has been on probation with the State with wage 
issues and so forth. He said he has been let go and referred to the disrespect to the workers and the 
wages weren’t been paid. He commented on former jobs with KeyWay concerning drug use on the job 
and instead of addressing it they shoved it under the table and tried to forget the whole thing, which 
turned into the man who came forward getting fired. He said they have contacted a federal agency that 
is looking into all of this including, interrogation, threats, intimidation, surveillance, threats of 
surveillance, restraining, lay off employees, firing employees, etc. He stated he came before Council 
and said there should be something they look at before they hire contractors. He referred to a 
confrontation with a KeyWay employee and wanted the Council to know what was going on over there 
and will be informing the owners and the developers. 
 
Mayor Middleton suggested he contact staff regarding this issue. 
 
Tom Pessemier clarified that KeyWay Corporation works for Capstone and does not have a contract 
with the City, he said it is a private project. He offered to meet with Mr. Oldham.  
 
Wyatt McMinn, nonresident, came forward and said this is happening in your town and it is a nice 
project but wanted to stress that these contractors are taking advantage of people and he referred to a 
pamphlet they made and a post card that can be signed and sent in.  
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 

9. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Councilor Clark thanked Mr. Gall for organizing the Christmas Tree Lighting and said it was a great 
community event and appreciated the tent and all the donations. 
 
Councilor Henderson announced a Citizen Charter Review Committee has been set up and said they 
meet every two weeks on a Thursday night in the Community Room and all the information is on the 
website. She said there will be time for public comments. She reminded everyone that the City Charter 
is our own local constitution. She said it is a very important document and commented on the 
importance of it being applicable and updated and should be revisited periodically. She stated the 
committee is hoping to have suggested changes to the Charter in the May election and she is 
recommending they separate the various proposed amendments on the ballot. She said the Charter was 
last amended in 2005 and is on the City website for review. 
 
Councilor Folsom commented that there was a percussion ensemble in the Cannery Square last Friday 
night and said they have CDs for sale on the band website and said they are skilled and have a new 
band director this year. She thanked everyone for attending the Voices of Performance Christmas 
Concert and said they had 130 performers on the stage. She thanked the community and said the tree 
lighting was great and thanked the Robin Hood Festival Committee for organizing the parade and the 
singing. She thanked City Recorder Sylvia Murphy for decorating the float.   
 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2013 
Page 10 of 10 

Councilor Henderson also thanked the City Recorder and the Public Works Department for getting the 
float ready for the parade.  
 
Mayor Middleton echoed the comments and thanked the Police Department, Public Works, and the 
Robin Hood Festival Association. 
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

10. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

Mr. Gall said the next Charter Review Committee meeting is December 19 at 6:30 pm. He noted that 
there is a Budget Committee opening and applications will be accepted until 5:00 pm January 17, 2014.  
 
Mayor Middleton adjourned to a URA Board of Directors Meeting at 8:17 pm. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by: 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder    Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 

11



Resolution 2014-001, Staff Report 
January 7, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

Council Meeting Date: January 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 

 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Kristen Switzer, Community Services Director 
 
Through:  Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2014-001, a Resolution Appointing Shelly Lamb to the 

Cultural Arts Commission 
 

 

 
ISSUE: 
Should the City Council appoint Shelly Lamb to the Cultural Arts Commission? 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Cultural Arts Commission currently has several vacancies. Shelly Lamb served on 
the Commission from 2003-2011 and has applied to come back and serve again. 
Council Liaison Robyn Folsom and the Chair of the Cultural Arts Commission Alyse 
Vordermark, with assistance of staff, are recommending Shelly Lamb for appointment. 
 
According to Chapter 2.08.010 of the Sherwood Municipal Code, members of the 
Cultural Arts Commission shall be appointed by the Mayor with consent of the City 
Council for a two year term.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends approving Resolution 2014-001, a resolution appointing 
Shelly Lamb to the Cultural Arts Commission. 
 
 

 

12



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-001 
January 7, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-001 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING SHELLY LAMB TO THE 
CULTURAL ARTS COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, the Cultural Arts Commission currently has vacancies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council Liaison to the Commission Robyn Folsom and the Chair of the 
Cultural Arts Commission Alyse Vordermark, with assistance from staff, are 
recommending to Shelly Lamb for appointment; and 
 
WHEREAS, according to Chapter 2.08.010 of the Sherwood Municipal Code, members 
of the Cultural Arts Commission shall be appointed by the Mayor with consent of the 
City Council for a two year term.  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.   The Mayor is authorized to appoint Shelly Lamb to a two year term, 

expiring January 2016. 
 
Section 2:  This Resolution is effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
 Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of January 2014. 
 

 

 

        ________________________ 

        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 

 
 
Attest: 
 

________________________________ 

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 

13



Resolution 2014-002, Staff Report 
January 7, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

Council Meeting Date: January 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 

 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Kristen Switzer, Community Services Director 
 
Through:  Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2014-002, a resolution appointing Vicki Poppen to the 

Cultural Arts Commission 
 

 

 
ISSUE: 
Should the City Council appoint Vicki Poppen to the Cultural Arts Commission? 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Cultural Arts Commission currently has several vacancies. Council Liaison Robyn 
Folsom and the Chair of the Cultural Arts Commission Alyse Vordermark, with 
assistance of staff, are recommending Vicki Poppen for appointment. 
 
According to Chapter 2.08.010 of the Sherwood Municipal Code, members of the 
Cultural Arts Commission shall be appointed by the Mayor with consent of the City 
Council for a two year term.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends approving Resolution 2014-002, a resolution appointing 
Vicki Poppen to the Cultural Arts Commission. 
 
 

14



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-002 
January 7, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-002 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING VICKI POPPEN TO THE 
CULTURAL ARTS COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, the Cultural Arts Commission currently has vacancies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council Liaison Robyn Folsom and the Chair of the Cultural Arts 
Commission Alyse Vordermark, with assistance from staff, are recommending Vicki 
Poppen for appointment; and 
 
WHEREAS, according to Chapter 2.08.010 of the Sherwood Municipal Code, members 
of the Cultural Arts Commission shall be appointed by the Mayor with consent of the 
City Council for a two year term.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.   The Mayor is authorized to appoint Vicki Poppen to a two year term, 

expiring January 2016. 
 
Section 2:  This Resolution is effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
 Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of January 2014. 
 

 

 

       _________________________ 

       Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 

 
 
 
Attest: 
 

________________________________ 

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 

15



Resolution 2014-003 
January 7, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

Council Meeting Date: January 7, 2014 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 

 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director 
 
Through:  Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 
Subject: Resolution 2014-003, a resolution removing James Copfer from the Planning 

Commission 
 
 

 
ISSUE: 

Should the City Council remove Commissioner James Copfer from the Planning Commission? 
 

BACKGROUND: 

James Copfer was appointed to Planning Commission on April 5, 2011 to fill a term vacated by a 
previous member and reappointed on July 17, 2012.   
 
Planning Commission work has picked up with numerous land use applications that require timely 
decisions. In 2013, Commissioner Copfer’s attendance has been much lower than expected for 
Commissioners at nearly 40% of meetings missed.  
 
Quorum is essential for the Commission to conduct business, which is often required to be conducted 
within a very tight timeframe, therefore it is imperative that Commissioners be present when at all 
possible and clearly identify as soon as possible when they will not be in attendance so that staff can 
ensure a quorum will be met or make alternative accommodations. On December 10, 2013 a quorum 
of the meeting was lost due to Commissioner Copfer’s actions which required the proceedings to start 
over at a subsequent meeting. 
 
The Planning Commission must have members that can fulfill their obligations in order to be 
successful. After providing Commissioner Copfer with multiple opportunities to discuss concerns and 
discussions amongst themselves, the Commission Chair, Commission Liaison and City staff 
recommends that Council consider whether Commissioner Copfer’s continued involvement on the 
Commission is in the best interest of the Planning Commission and community and whether he should 
be removed from the Planning Commission. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

City staff respectfully recommends consideration of the resolution but is not making a 
recommendation on whether or not to approve Resolution 2014-003.   
 
 

16



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-003 
January 7, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-003 
 

A RESOLUTION REMOVING COMMISSIONER JAMES COPFER FROM THE  
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, James Copfer was appointed to Planning Commission on April 5, 2011 to fill a term 
vacated by a previous member and reappointed on July 17, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Copfer has had sufficient training to understand the expectations of 
Planning Commission members; and 
 
WHEREAS, regular attendance to scheduled meetings is expected; and 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Copfer has missed meetings at a much higher rate than usual for a 
Commissioner during the past year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 16.060.010.B of the municipal code states: A Commission member may be 
removed by a majority vote of the Council for misconduct or non-performance of duty, as determined 
by the Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, Planning Commission has sufficient members to carry out regular business while 
awaiting a new appointee to be named, if Commissioner Copfer is removed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.   Commissioner James Copfer is hereby removed from the Planning Commission. 
 
Section 2.   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of January 2014. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

17



Community Development Department – 
Monthly update 
December 27, 2013 
 
The City of Sherwood Community Development Division consists of three departments which, 
provides quality current and long range planning, building and engineering services to support 
the infrastructure, livability, well-being and economic development of the community.  The 
following is a summary of the key projects or tasks each department routinely does for the 
community and an update on current projects or status.  

Planning: 
Current Planning- Projects in Review  
• Pacific Dental Parking Expansion (Dr. Doyle parking lot) – Appeal Hearing January 14, 2014.  
• Gerda Lane Office Building 
• Sherwood Industrial Park Phase II 
• Washington County TSP amendment (Baler extension) Hearing continued until January 28, 2014 
• Washington County TSP amendment (Adams Avenue north extension) Hearing continued until 

January 28, 2014 
• Legacy Parkway 3-lot Minor Land Partition 
• Kohl’s Minor Land Partition 
• Brownstone text and map amendment 
• Front Yard Setback plan amendment (proposed by DR Horton) 
• (2) Minor Modifications to existing site plan approvals 
 
For approved projects or more detail, check out “projects” under “more resources” on the website 
 
Long Range Planning  
• SW Corridor Plan 
• Cedar Creek Trail (Regional Flexible Fund grant) 
• TSP Update (TGM grant funded) 
• Sherwood West Concept Planning (CET grant funded) 
• Washington County industrial sites planning effort (CET grant funded)  
 
Other 
• Business license review and Home Occupation permits (31 Class A and 38 Class B  home occupation 

permits issued this year) 
• Street Tree Permits (56 permits issued this year  

Engineering: 
Capital (City or URA) projects 
• Columbia Street water quality facility – City Council authorized City Manager to enter into contract 

for full design of the facility.  Construction is slated for summer 2014. 
• Sherwood Community Center – Project bidding process completed with Corp Inc. the lowest 

responsive bidder.  The URA Board authorized URA District Manager to enter into contractor for 
construction services with Corp Inc.  In addition, Ankrom-Moisan will be providing construction 
management services during construction of the facility. 

18



• Tonquin Employment Area Sanitary Sewer upgrade- Engineering designed and obtained necessary 
permits and is now managing the construction contract and inspections.  Majority of construction 
completed.  Due to wet weather setting in, the last leg of the pipeline is under 3 to 5 feet of water.  
With no expectation that the water level will be low enough to construct this portion of the line 
within the next 9 months, this section of the pipeline will be installed next summer.  Request for 
permit extension is being submitted to DEQ, USACE, and CWS. 

 
Private Development: 
• Developer has submitted SDC/TDT request for 3 separate buildings on Langer Phase 7 site 

development project.  Calculations have taken significant amount of time due to the complexity of 
multiple projects occurring simultaneously with multiple deferral and credit options. 

• Langer Phase 7 (under construction)   
• Sentinel storage (new facility)  
• Adams Avenue (Langer Farms Parkway north of Tualatin Sherwood road) under construction.  Some 

minor design changes at the Home Depot entrance has occurred.  Review of the Sentinel Storage 
facility relocation bids underway. 

• McFall subdivision (under construction) Erosion sediment control issues and some design issues 
have been corrected via correspondence with contractor.  First home nearing completion and will 
be requesting occupancy.  Confirming requirements for occupancy with developer and contractor. 

• Daybreak subdivision is under construction.  Project planning on constructing two model homes 
within the subdivision for advertising purposes. 

• Tualatin-Sherwood Road Widening Project:  WACO submitted requests for two TSP Amendments.  
Working with applicants by providing appropriate guidance on submittals and presentation to PC. 

 
Other projects: 
• Transportation System Plan update: Meetings #’s 1 and 2 completed for TAC and CAC. First open 

house also held.  Low turnout for open house.  Entering third phase of TSP Update with 
development of CIP list. 

• Right of Way permits:  7 active ROW permits (42 this year).  $3600 in ROW permit fees collected 
within current year reporting period. 

• Addressing:  One new address was issued this month. 
• Oversee SDC fee calculations on private development projects:  Provided SDC estimates on several 

requested developments (Two Kilts Brewery, NW Growler, Sherwood Growler, Pfieffer Property, 
and Threat Dynamics.  Provided final SDC/TDT calculations on Langer Phase 7 buildings.  Responded 
to developer on existing shell buildings on Meinecke Road. 

• Erosion control inspections:  Staff has 6 active/open erosion control permits which requires 
inspections weekly and monthly reports to Clean Water Serviced.   

• Traffic Control Management Planning:  In response to numerous requests from residents CDD staff 
is In the process of developing guidance policy draft for future traffic calming requests.  This will be 
an on-going discussion and no formal action will be taken until conversations with Council are held. 

• RTP update process – Staff from Community Development submitted requested documentation to 
Metro for the Regional Transportation Plan update to ensure that projects in and benefitting the 
City of Sherwood are clearly identified and on the financially constrained list, thus making them 
eligible for regional, state and federal funding consideration.   

Building: 
Permits issued and under construction  
• McDonald’s Remodel -  Completed 
• Gramor Development (AKA Langer Phase 7) GRADING/SITE WORK-Work in process. 
• Sentinel Storage Grading/Site Work - Work in process. 
• Sentinel Storage All buildings 1-13 in construction. 

19



• Residences at The Cannery East and West- East building Temporary occupancy approved, West 
building.  Finish work in process 

• NW Natural Gas- Work in process. Building “A” Occupancy approved for office areas.  Haz/Mat bld.  
Footings in place.  CNG fueling station in process. 

• U-Haul Remodel -  Completed 
• DR Horton Sub-Division (Daybreak) GRADING- Work in process. 
• Railroad Street Antique Mall remodel –  Completed 
• S&M Moving (tenant improvement) -  Completed 
• Mathnasium T/I - Completed 
• Wal Mart-Permits issued footings/foundation/block walls in process 
• U-Haul storage - construction in process framing units. 
• Parkway Village at Sherwood Shell bldgs. C,D,E,F.-Issued 
• Growler House T/I - work in process 
• Hunter’s Ridge office T/I 

 
• 14 Single Family Homes Issued and/or in construction 
• 13 Structural Residential Additions/Remodels/Misc. 
• Multiple plumbing/mechanical/misc. permits issued  

 
Permits in review 
• Sherwood Community Center Bld. - Ready to issue  
• 9 Single Family Homes in review, 0 ready to issue.  
• NW Growlers T/I. 
• Sherwood Law T/I. 
• Spa/Salon T/I.  
• Galbreath warehouse office addition.   

Other updates: 
• Staff just completed the application to maintain the City’s “Tree City USA” status for the ninth year 

in a row.  This will also be the second year that the City applied for the Growth Award from “Tree 
City USA” 

• Tri-Met is hosting a public meeting in Sherwood on January 16th (6:30-8:30) in City Hall to discuss 
their Service Enhancement Plan.  We are encouraging anyone interested in changes to local transit 
service (more, less, changes in routes, etc) to attend.  For more information, feel free to contact 
Julia Hajduk. 

20



Public Works Department  
Monthly Update – December 2013 

Below are the tasks performed for each section that are in addition to our regular maintenance 

programs. 

Water 
 Waiting for Contractor’s schedule so that we can install water services for the following: Sentinel 

Storage, Walmart, various pads – Not Complete. 

 Publish RFP for AMI; award in February 2014  

o Published Nov. 1, Step 2 Field Demonstration/Evaluation to begin December 23rd 

 Inspection of Daybreak Subdivision water line installation 

 Installation of Segment 3 Pipeline – flow testing to begin after first of year 

 Assisted 20 customers with broken water pipes due to freezing temperatures 

 Coordination with Washington County and regional partners on how water purveyor 
consistently publishes or coordinates boiled water events, etc. 
 

Storm 
 Completed the curbside pickup of the Leaf program   

o December 21st is the last leaf drop at Public Works 

 Brush removal with R2R and CWS at Woodhaven Park  
o Assisted CWS and R2R with three (3) days of wood chipping for Enhancement Project. 
o Tree planting on Nov. 9th by R2R at Woodhaven Open Space/Storm Water Quality 

Facility 
o Work will continue on December 23rd and 24th. 

 Fence repairs at King Richard Water Quality Facility to be completed in December 

 Complete City’s stormwater pollution control plan with implementation in January 2014 
 

Sanitary 
 Scheduled Programs for Sanitary started in December (video inspection/assessment and jetting) 

 Video-inspected our “Grease List” for monitoring of Food Establishments practices 

 Completed mandatory Sanitary Sewer Overflow training  

 Sanitary Service Lateral repair on Division Street 

 

Parks/Sports Fields 
 GPS irrigation system while winterizing system  

 Field lights at  Laurel Ridge and Middle school (waiting on funding to begin land use process)  

 Begin bid process for replacement of structure and boarders at Murdock Park 
o Received new playground equipment for Murdock Park 
o Coordinating with Rotary for removal of existing structure in January 2014  

 

Streets 
 Continue Sidewalk Program full replacement repairs and inspections  
 Completed update of road-rating system (PCI)  
 Prep for tree trimming program – will be completed in December and January 

21



School District 
 Clean up all planter beds at Laurel Ridge, Edy Ridge and the High School 

 

Fleet/Equipment 
 Continue to work on Vehicle and Equipment Depreciation and Replacement Program. 

 Installed snow tires on majority of police vehicles. 

 Starting annual PM of all parks equipment. 
 

Facilities 
 Tree removal of plum trees in front of ADA parking at YMCA (replacement trees may not be 

replanted until spring) to address safety issues.  

 Facility Asset Management plan will be completed in January 2014. 
 

Administration/Utility Billing 
 Continue working with surveys/analysis of residential accounts in commercial zones (confirm 

proper billing).   

 Continue working with survey/analysis of properties in City limits with no account. 

 Total number of customer service calls for Month of November (both UB and Public Works) 
1810 (average 101 calls per day; does not include email or walk in customers) 
 

Solid Waste 
 Continue to work on commercial food scrap pilot program for solid waste with Washington 

County and Pride Disposal.  
o Sherwood Senior Center will be part of program.  Director of Senior Center met with 

Pride Disposal and County representative to get started. 
 

22



Urban Renewal Agency – Update 

December 27, 2013 
 
The City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency (URA) provides oversight and management of 
Urban Renewal projects and assets in the Urban Renewal District (URD).  While many resources 
are shared with City Staff it is a separate legal entity and has a separate Board of Directors.  The 
Board of Directors is supported by the Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency Policy Advisory 
Committee (SURPAC).  In 2012 the Agency completed a major modification to the URA plan.  
This plan guides the direction and policies of the Agency.  The following is a summary of the key 
projects or tasks that the Urban Renewal Agency is completing.  The last portion of this update 
is a current Urban Renewal Financial Reporting.  

Capital Projects: 
Community Center  

 Bid proposals were opened on December 5th and Corp, Inc is the low bidder.    

 The URA Board approved a resolution for the City Manager to enter into a contract with 
Corp, Inc for construction of the center.  The URA Board also approved the City Manager 
to enter into a contract with Ankrom Moisan for construction management services. 

 Construction is tentatively expected to begin in late January with the facility opening in 
winter of 2014. 

 Building Permit plans were submitted in late September and the comments have been 
addressed.  Permits are ready to be picked up. 

 Community Services Department and Public Works are developing an Operating Plan 
and costs to operate the facility. 

 The URA selected PARC resources to assist staff and community groups to put together 
grant applications to fund capital assets and operating expenses for the center.  The first 
grant opportunity was submitted to ArtPlace in late December and their schedule is to 
inform applicants in February whether they can submit a full grant application. 

 Signage for the building is beginning to be considered.  At this point we are beginning to 
discuss location, types of signage and the look of the signs.  This can wait until the 
project is well along and the options are to hire a signage company directly or to hire 
Ankrom to do preliminary design services in the next few months.  The project 
management team will discuss and make a decision. 

 Fixtures Furnishings and Expendables (FFE) decisions will be required in the spring.  FFE 
items are anything that is not permanently attached to the building.  The project 
management team has decided to utilize Ankrom Moisan for these services.  Separate 
funds have been set aside for these items and are not included in the financial report 
below because they are not URA funds.  The effort to complete this will probably start in 
January or February. 

Downtown Streetscapes  
 This project is substantially complete but there are some outstanding items relative to 

landscaping that will be finished in the spring.  The project is in the warranty period so 
inspections will be completed after a year to make sure that things are performing as 
expected.  There are always some items that need to be modified but will be small in 
nature. 

23

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/ura/page/sherwood-urban-renewal-plan


Cannery Square Plaza  
 This project is substantially complete but there are some warranty items that are still 

being worked on.  Faulty valves will be replaced with manual valves over the winter and 
tested when the fountain opens in the spring. 

Columbia Street Water Quality Facility  
 The lot line adjustment for the facility has been completed and design will begin soon.  

The URA potion of the project has been finished but there are agreements with Clean 
Water Services that need to be met that impact the URA so this project will remain on 
the URA list until finished.  A contract for the design work was approved by City Council. 

Cedar Creek Trial  
 The Urban Renewal Agency committed to funding preliminary design services.  This 

work is over 90% completed and the project is expected to move into the design and 
construction phases.  Additional Urban Renewal commitments are not expected. 

URA Operations: 
SURPAC  

 SURPAC met in November and discussed Capital projects and Economic Development.  
The next meeting is scheduled for January 9th but there are not many issues to discuss at 
this time. 

 The URA Board approved Doug Scott and Meerta Meyer to be on SURPAC. 
Asset Management  

 Main Street – property line has been adjusted and will home will be ready to sell shortly.  

 Red House on First Street – Demolition of this attractive nuisance is scheduled for some 
time this spring.  Removal of Asbestos will have to happen first and then demolition will 
commence.  SURPAC recommended the house not be demolished until a realtor 
weighed in on the resale value with a house there even if it was not occupied. 

 RFQ for residential real estate services is being prepared and should be sent out in 
January. 

 RFQ for commercial real estate services will follow the RFQ for residential services 

 Asset Management Plan – This plan has been presented to the URA Board and SURPAC.  
Residential and Commercial services will be retained to advise on how and when to 
divest the URA of the assets owned. 

Business Development  
 With the restructuring of Main Streets there is not a major organized effort for business 

development in Old Town.  SURPAC will be taking this issue up at future meetings and 
preparing a recommendation for the URA Board  

Finances  
 Financial Reports are being prepared as required by State Law.  The Finance department 

is preparing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and Elaine Howard is 
preparing the Urban Renewal Annual Report.  Both reports will be available around the 
end of January and will be placed on the City website.  

24


	01  City Council Packet Cover 01.07.14
	02  City Council Agenda 01.07.14
	03  12.17.13 City Council Minutes-DRAFT
	04  Resolution 2014-001 Appt Shelly Lamb to Cult. Arts Comm-STAFF REPORT 01.07.14
	05  Resolution 2014-001 Appt Shelly Lamb to Cult. Arts Comm-DRAFT 01.07.14
	06  Resolution 2014-002 Appt Vicki Poppen to Cult. Arts Comm-STAFF REPORT 01.07.14
	07  Resolution 2014-002 Appt Vicki Poppen to Cult. Arts Comm-DRAFT 01.07.14
	08  Resolution 2014-003 Remove James Copfer from Plan Comm-STAFF REPORT 01.07.14
	09  Resolution 2014-003 Remove James Copfer from Plan Comm-DRAFT 01.07.14
	10  Community Dev Dept Report December 2013
	Planning:
	Engineering:
	Building:
	Other updates:

	11  Public Works Dept Report December 2013
	12  Urban Renewal Dept Report December 2013



